
 

1. Administrative 
a. Introduction – New Town Planner Karen Cullen 

b. Minutes – July 19, 2016 (note, no meeting held in August) 

 

 

2. Old Business – None  
 

 

3. New Business 
a. Public Hearing: Zoning Amendment to  Section 4.8.1. Off-Premises Signs 

b. Public Hearing: Zoning Amendment to  Section 5.3.1, Building Permits to 
change what activities require a building permit  

c. Public Hearing: Shoreland Zoning Ordinance Amendment to  bring it into 
compliance with DEP’s model ordinance 

d. Pre-application & Sketch Plan – Bog Road Subdivision; Tim Brochu, CES  

e. Discussion re: Day Care Facilities – Ben Doucette 

f. Zoning Amendment Process – Discussion  

g. Overview of Town’s Work Plan and Planner’s responsibilities 

h. Status of Comprehensive Plan Committee 

 

 

4. Planning Board Comments 
 

 

5. Adjournment 
 

 

Town of Hampden 

Planning Board 

Wednesday September 14, 2016, 7:00 pm 

Municipal Building Council Chambers 

Agenda 



 

 

 

 

 

In Attendance: 

 Planning Board Staff & Others 
 Peter Weatherbee, Chairman  Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
 Michael Avery, Secretary Myles Block, Code Enforcement Officer 
 Andrew Scott Ed Bearor, Town Attorney 
 Eugene Weldon  
 James Davitt  
 Joan Reilly  
 Morton Syversen  

 

Chairman Weatherbee called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm 

1. Old Business: 
 
Continued Public Hearing: Site Plan/Conditional Use Review of proposed Solid 
Waste Recycling and Processing Facility. Applicant: Fiberight LLC and Municipal 
Review Committee (MRC). 
 
Chairman Weatherbee opened the public hearing by noting that this is the fifth public 
hearing session regarding the application. He noted that this item was on the prior 
Planning Board agenda but was opened and continued with no testimony taken at that 
time due to the absence of multiple Board members. He said that there is new 
information in the meeting packet for tonight’s hearing session including the recently 
issued DEP licenses and a submittal from the applicant regarding truck traffic. He said 
that the scope of public comments would be limited to new information not previously 
on the record, and that speakers would be limited to three minutes. He asked the 
applicant to present initially. 
 
Sean Thies from CES, Inc., the applicant’s representative, presented the preferred truck 
routes plan that would seek to route truck traffic away from the intersection of 
Western Avenue and Route 1A, and encourage use of Interstate 95. He reported that, 
since the last hearing session, Maine DEP had issued final Solid Waste, Stormwater 
and Natural Resources licenses for the project. 
 
Member Scott asked if any other permits are pending, and Mr. Thies said that only the 
local permitting remained. 
 
Chairman Weatherbee opened the floor to public comment. 

Town of Hampden 

Planning Board  

Wednesday July 19, 2016, 7:00 pm 

Municipal Building Council Chambers 

Minutes 

DRA
FT

townmanager
Text Box
1-b



  Planning Board 
  Minutes of 7/19/2016 Meeting 
  Page 2 of 6 
 
 

Deborah Dufton from Monroe Road said she has lived here for 40 years, has watched 
this hearing multiple times, and has seen “red flags” due to the scale of the proposed 
Hampden facility relative to the existing Fiberight facility in Virginia. She is concerned 
about how the truck routes will be enforced, and said that complete information has 
not been provided regarding how impacts to vernal pools will be mitigated. She is 
concerned about odor impacts and air emissions, and asked who is investing capital in 
the project. 

Chairman Weatherbee stated financing is not a concern of the Planning Board, that is 
outside the Board’s purview.  

Ms. Dufton said that the emissions and burning of materials that we ought to recycle or 
compost leads her to not support the project. 

There being no further public comment, there was a motion by Member Davitt 
seconded by Member Weldon to close the public hearing, and the motion carried 7-0. 

Chairman Weatherbee said that the Planning Board would now review the application 
against the criteria in the Zoning Ordinance for Site Plan and Conditional Use. He said 
that Associate Member Andrew Scott would be a voting member on this matter in the 
absence of Kelley Wiltbank. Chairman Weatherbee asked CEO Block whether he had 
any additional information to provide and he did not.  

Chairman Weatherbee said staff has prepared a draft proposed order as a 
guideline to review the required findings. The Board then reviewed the draft Order, 
which is attached to and are part of these minutes. Points of discussion follow. Note, 
the Order includes the findings and each motion in detail and they have not been 
repeated here. 

• Parking spaces – for uses not specified, the Planning Board can set required 
parking based on a plan submitted by the applicant; Sean Thies stated the 
parking was calculated based on the number of employees (70); they are 
providing 48 spaces; typically there will be 25 to 30 employees per shift. CEO 
Block had calculated they needed 92 spaces; S. Thies said they can accommodate 
a maximum of 53. 

• Motion 1: Member Syverson expressed concern that an updated draft Board 
Order had been provided to the Board just prior to tonight’s meeting, and he said 
there is not time to review it. Chairman Weatherbee noted that a draft had been 
provided to the Board several days ago, but that the DEP licenses had been issued 
since this time so the draft has now been updated. He said that the draft before 
the Board is a guide and is not intended as a final document. He asked whether 
there is discussion from the Board regarding whether the application is complete. 
Member Avery asked if CEO Block could discuss the revisions. Attorney Bearor 
stated he had gotten his comments at 11:30 today, the first item is the number of 

DRA
FT



  Planning Board 
  Minutes of 7/19/2016 Meeting 
  Page 3 of 6 
 
 

parking spaces. Member Avery stated he needed more time to absorb the 
changes; he is struggling with the importance of this application. Member Scott 
asked if the Town Attorney had any comments; he replied yes, and so did 
Woodard & Curran and others. CEO Block stated he had calculated a need for 
92 parking spaces. Section 4.7.1.1.17 of the Zoning Ordinance says that for uses 
not specified, the Planning Board can set parking needs based on plan submittal 
by the applicant on another level. Member Avery stated we know what the 
ordinance requires, he wants to know what the facts are regarding what is 
proposed. Attorney Bearor asked how the parking count was arrived at; S. Thies 
explained they did not separate the parking for the processing facility from the 
office space. They used the number of employees – 70 – and figured they needed 
48 spaces, which is what the current plan shows. He added they can accommodate 
53 spaces but not 92, which seems excessive. He noted there are typically 25 to 
30 employees per shift. Attorney Bearor said one of the findings is whether there 
is enough parking. Using ¾ of a space per employee and apply that to the larger 
number of employees (70). Member Avery asked at what point do we address 
this; Chairman Weatherbee replied later in the decision. CEO Block added it is 
performance standard #3 under site plan review. Chairman Weatherbee stated 
the current issue for discussion is whether the application is complete. Member Scott 
asked if there was any staff recommendation; CEO Block stated the application 
would not have gotten to the Board if it was not complete.  The Board found that 
the application is complete. 

• Motion 2: Chairman Weatherbee read the relevant language regarding 
consistency with zoning ordinance and comprehensive plan. Member Avery asked 
if the building height as proposed exceeded the height limitation; CEO Block 
stated it is in compliance. Member Weldon made a motion that the proposed 
development meets the standards, seconded by Member Davitt. Member Scott 
asked who determined that it does; Attorney Bearor stated the draft order is not a 
substitute for the Board’s deliberation. Member Scott said this hasn’t been 
reviewed against the comprehensive plan; Attorney Bearor said it wouldn’t be a 
separate review. Member Weldon said that as part of the Comprehensive Plan 
Committee, it’s my opinion that it meets the Comprehensive Plan. Member Scott 
reiterated that there is a lot of information to digest. The Board found that the 
application meets the standards.  

• Motion 3: Chairman Weatherbee read Section 4.1.7.2, proposed buildings 
consistent with buildings in the vicinity – There are no other buildings in the vicinity 
and the building is setback 100 feet based on DEP requirements for solid waste 
processing facilities. The Boardfound that the proposed development is properly 
integrated with the site. 

• Motion 4: Section 4.1.7.3, site ingress and egress: Member Avery asked if this is 
the time to discuss off-site traffic. Attorney Bearor stated the Board has the 
opportunity to add conditions that are within the Board’s authority. This standard 

DRA
FT



  Planning Board 
  Minutes of 7/19/2016 Meeting 
  Page 4 of 6 
 
 

relates to on-site traffic. The conditional use standards are somewhat broader; the 
board can accept truck haul routes volunteered by the applicant. Member Reilly 
asked if there are turn lanes proposed off Coldbrook Road; S. Thies said there 
are no designated turn lanes but there is a widened shoulder on Coldbrook Road.  
Member Syversen asked if there will be a lot of traffic coming off I-95; S. Thies 
said yes, this reduces right-turns into the site. He added DOT required reinforcing 
the shoulder; the volumes didn’t warrant a dedicated turn lane. Member Avery 
asked if DOT reviewed the numbers based on revised traffic patterns; S. Thies 
said the project didn’t exceed the DOT threshold for requiring a traffic study, the 
traffic study was a local requirement. Motion by A. Scott, seconded by M. 
Syversen, to find that the proposed development is consistent with this standard 
and the site layout provides safe ingress and egress to the site; further discussion 
ensued. Kyle Corbeil said the initial application said 70 employees, while the 
traffic study said 66 and sheet C103 said maximum 50 employees per shift. 
Discussion on the number of employees on various shifts and the number of parking 
spaces needed. Motion amended to add a condition that 53 parking spaces be 
provided rather than the 48 shown on the initial submittal; carried 7/0/0. 

• Motions 5 through 8 were approved by unanimous votes with no additional 
discussion.  

• Motion 9: Attorney Bearor said the DEP permit has been issued; this language (in 
the draft order) allows us to monitor the DEP conditions. The Board adopted the 
motion. 

• Motion 10: After discussion regarding cross-referencing the DEP conditions, the 
Board adopted the motion.  

• Motion 11: S. Thies stated that Maine Natural Areas has signed off. The Board 
adopted the motion.  

• Motion 12: After discussion regarding the truck routing policy, it was established 
that the policy cannot be enforced by the applicant or the Town. J. Pottle, attorney 
for the applicant, stated they are committed to providing maps to all the haulers 
and the municipalities, and if it becomes known that a hauler is not complying, they 
can suspend the driver. Attorney Bearor said a condition can be added to adopt 
the haul route policy; if problems arise we would probably contact MCR/Fiberight. 
Craig Stuart-Paul, CEO of Fiberight, said they don’t want to be a burden on the 
Town, and they can impose a one hour delay on wayward truckers. The Board 
adopted the motion. 

• Motion 13: Section 4.1.7.13, Attorney Bearor said there are no proposed 
condition. Member Avery asked if conditions can be handled at the end; he said 
traffic, odor, air quality are highly subjective and asked if this is where we might 
address these issues or add condition. Attorney Bearor said Section 4.2.3 governs 
conditional use standards. The Board adopted the motion. 

DRA
FT



  Planning Board 
  Minutes of 7/19/2016 Meeting 
  Page 5 of 6 
 
 

• Motion 13B: Discussion on how this standard is within the approvals by DEP. The 
Board adopted the motion.  

• Motion 14: The Board adopted the motion to approve the site plan, pending 
approval of the Conditional Use.  

• Discussion under Conditional Use regarding odor and how it will be dealt with; 
understanding that it will be dealt with in conditions later in the Order. 

• Motion 15: The Board adopted the motion. 
• Motion 16: Discussion regarding where waste will be stored and disposed of; 

applicant stated that all solid waste generated on site will be processed or 
recycled. He added that all waste not processed will be trucked to the 
Norridgewock facility; there is a letter on record regarding this. The Board 
adopted the motion. 

• Motion 17: After some discussion regarding comments from direct abutters, the 
draft motion was modified and adopted. 

• Motion 18: After discussion and modification of the draft motion to incorporate 
reference to the Maine DEP Air Emissions Permit, the Board adopted the motion. 

• Motion 19: The Board adopted the motion with minor modification.  
• Motion 20: The Board adopted the motion with modification. 
• Motion 21: The Board adopted the motion. 
• Motion 22: Discussion regarding funding for completion of the project and sureties 

to ensure public infrastructure is completed. Attorney Bearor said the option 
agreement with Bouchard requires road acceptance before the building permit 
can be obtained. Water and sewer would be subject to the Water District and the 
Sewer Commissioners. The Board adopted the motion.  

• Motion 23: the Board adopted the motion.  

The Board took a recess at 9:19 pm.  

The Board then reviewed the conditions in the draft Order.  

• Discussion regarding trucking routes and enforcement of same. Attorney Bearor 
said the Board could accept the offer of Fiberight to impose a one hour delay as 
a penalty for truckers violating the policy. The draft condition was amended to 
include that penalty. 

• Motion 24: Member Syversen made a motion to adopt the conditions presented in 
the draft Order, as amended; second by Member Scott; motion carried by 
unanimous vote. 

• Motion 25: Member Davitt made a motion that based on the Findings of Fact and 
Conclusions of Law, together with the background information for this application 
and the conditions listed, to approve the MRC/Fiberight Solid Waste Processing 

DRA
FT



  Planning Board 
  Minutes of 7/19/2016 Meeting 
  Page 6 of 6 
 
 

Facility Conditional Use; seconded by Member Scott; motion carried by unanimous 
vote. 

The meeting was adjourned at 10:03 pm.  

 
Respectfully submitted by Karen Cullen, Town Planner 
From notes taken by Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DRA
FT



To: Planning Board 
From: Karen M. Cullen, AICP, Town Planner 
Date: August 4, 2016 
RE: Amendments to Zoning and Shoreland Zoning 

Attached you will find the draft language for two amendments to the Zoning Ordinance that have 
been referred to the full Planning Board from the Ordinance Committee, both by unanimous vote. 
The first is regarding off-premises signage and the second is regarding the threshold for when a 
building permit is required.  

The purpose of the change to the off-premises signage provisions is to allow one sign near the 
intersection of Main Road North and Marina Road to make the public aware of and direct them 
to the Waterfront Park. Due to requirements of the Maine Department of Transportation that 
prohibit the placement of off-premises commercial signs within the state right-of-way, and 
complexities with ownership of Marina Road, there are challenges to erecting signs that this 
proposed amendment will help to resolve. The vision is to have one freestanding sign, with a 
maximum sign size of 50 square feet (per side assuming the sign would be double sided), with 
placards “embedded” into the design of the overall sign for each business in the Waterfront I 
Zoning District. The municipal park would be the primary use being advertised on the sign.  

P. Weatherbee made a motion, seconded by J. Reilly, to send this amendment to the Planning
Board with a recommendation of “ought to pass.”

The purpose of the amendment regarding the building permit threshold is to eliminate the existing 
conflict between Hampden’s code and the Maine Uniform Building and Energy Code (MUBEC). 
Rather than our zoning ordinance specifying what requires a building permit, this amendment 
refers back to the MUBEC.  

P. Weatherbee made a motion, seconded by J. Davitt, to send this amendment to the Planning
Board with a recommendation of “ought to pass.”

The third amendment is to the Shoreland Zoning Ordinance, and is not included with this portion of 
the packet since I have found dozens of instances where the red-lined version recently circulated 
does not actually have any change, which is confusing to everyone. I had planned to clean that 

Town of Hampden 

Office of the Town Planner 

Memorandum 

planner
Text Box
3a, b, c



document up today, but unfortunately I am unable to locate the Word version of the document. I 
plan to work with Myles Block on Monday to address this, and hope to have the cleaned up 
version showing the changes that are actually proposed by the close of business on Monday. 
Nearly all of the actual changes are to bring the Shoreland Zoning Ordinance into compliance 
with the DEP model ordinance, and most of it relates to the expansion of non-conforming structures 
or to tree removal.  

P. Weatherbee made a motion, seconded by J. Davitt, to send this amendment to the Planning 
Board with a recommendation of “ought to pass.” 

 

Should the Planning Board agree, the next step in the process is for the Planning Board to set a 
public hearing to address these amendments.  

 

The Ordinance Committee is continuing to work on the accessory apartment amendment, as I have 
raised a number of broader issues which led the committee to direct me to rewrite the draft as a 
combination of the two family conversion provisions with the proposed accessory apartment 
provisions. Once redrafted, the Ordinance Committee will reconvene to discuss the new draft.  





Off-Premises signage for the Waterfront Park area 

Add a new section 4.8.1.4 of the Hampden Zoning Ordinance to read: 

In order to promote the use and enjoyment of the Waterfront Park and uses within the Waterfront 
1 Zoning District, such uses and businesses within said district shall be permitted to have signage 
located on Main Road North (Route 1A) in the vicinity of Marina Road subject to the following 
conditions: 

a. One freestanding sign structure is permitted, on which all signage for the Waterfront
District 1 shall be installed.

b. The signage may be double-faced, and the cumulative area shall not exceed 50 square
feet per side, exclusive of the sign structure.

c. Each individual sign for a non-municipal entity shall not exceed 15 square feet in area
(per side for a double faced sign).

d. The maximum height of the sign shall not exceed 15 feet in height from the ground level
under the sign.

e. Lighting of the sign shall only be by an externally located steady stationary white light
source, shielded and directed solely at the sign.

f. If located on private property, the owner of the property must have given permission in
writing to allow the installation of the sign.

g. Authorization for placement of a sign under this section shall be obtained from the Code
Enforcement Officer.

planner
Text Box
3a



ARTICLE 5 - ENFORCEMENT 
(Amended: 6/ 3/02) 

 
5.1. Administrative Officer - This Ordinance shall be enforced by a Code Enforcement Officer 
appointed by the Town Manager with confirmation by the Town Council. 

 
5.2.   Duties - The Code Enforcement Officer, in enforcing this Ordinance, shall be responsible for 
establishing reasonable procedures for enforcement, keeping all activities within the jurisdiction of this 
Ordinance under surveillance, issuing building and/or use permits where applicable, keeping public records of 
his proceeding and instituting or causing to be instituted any or all actions that might be appropriate for the 
enforcement of this Ordinance. 

 
5.3. Permits - Application for a building permit and a certificate of compliance shall be made 
concurrently with the initial application. 

 
5.3.1. Building Permits 

 
5.3.1.1.  Building Permit Required - An application shall be submitted to the Code Enforcement 
Officer for the following activities, and these activities shall not commence in the Town of Hampden 
without a permit being issued.  Building Permits shall be required per the Maine Uniform Building 
and Energy Code as amended from time to time.  

 
1.   Construct or alter a structure. 

 
2.   Change of exterior dimensions of a existing structure; 

 
3.   Construct a sign or change the exterior dimensions of a sign; 

 
4.   Reconstruction of a disaster-damaged or disaster-destroyed structure. 

 
5.3.1.2.   No building permit shall be issued except in conformity with the provisions of this 
Ordinance. 

 
5.3.1.3.  Within fourteen (14) days of the filing of an application for a building permit, the 
Code Enforcement Officer shall approve or deny such application or shall refer the 
applicant to the planning board or the Board of Appeals. The decision shall be in writing and 
communicated directly to the applicant. In the case of a denial of an application, the decision shall 
include reasons for such. One (1) copy of the Code Enforcement Officer's decision shall be filed 
in the municipal office. (Amended:09-18-06) 

 
5.3.1.4. No building permit for a building or structure on any lot shall be issued except to the owner 
of record thereof, or his authorized agent.  The Code Enforcement Officer may require that any 
application for such a permit shall be accompanied by a plan, accurately drawn to scale, showing the 
actual shape and dimensions of the lot to be built upon, an on site soils survey, the exact location and 
size of all buildings or structures already on the lot, the location of new buildings to be constructed, 
together with the lines within which all buildings and structures are to be constructed, the existing 
and intended use of each building or structure, and other such information as may be necessary 
to provide for the execution and enforcement of this Ordinance. 

planner
Text Box
3b



 
5.3.1.5.  Applications for permits with their accompanying plans and building permits shall be 
maintained as a permanent record by the Code Enforcement Officer. 
 
5.3.1.6. A building permit secured under the provisions of this Ordinance shall expire if the work or 
change is not commenced within six (6) twelve (12) months of the date on which the permit is granted, 
or if the work or change is not substantially completed within two (2) years of the date on which the 
permit is granted. 

 
5.3.1.7.  No building permit, demolition permit, earth moving permit, sign permit or certificate of 
compliance shall be issued without payment of fees in accordance with the Town of Hampden Fees 
Ordinance. (Amended: 11-17-03) 

 
Any structure on which construction, including but not limited to foundation work, has begun before the 
issuance of a building permit will be assessed double the above described fees. 

 
5.3.1.8. Building permits for structures to be located on subdivision lots shall not be issued by the 
Code Enforcement Officer until all improvements, including public utilities (sewer, water and 
electrical), roads and drainage facilities as approved by the Planning Board and required by town 
ordinances, are completed to the satisfaction of the Town designated engineering consultant and the 
road, if any, has been accepted by the Town Council as a town way. (Amended: 03-01-10) 

 
5.3.1.9. Wastewater Disposal Permit Required - No building permit shall be issued for any structure or 
use involving the construction, installation, or alteration of plumbing facilities unless either a 
subsurface wastewater disposal permit or sewer hook-on permit has been secured by the applicant or his 
authorized agent in conformance with the State of Maine Subsurface Wastewater Disposal Rules or the 
Town of Hampden Sewer Ordinance. (Amended: 03-01-10) 

 



3-d

















The Zoning 
Amendment 

Process

Town of Hampden Maine

Or, who does what when and 
how can we improve it

3-f



PB

P&D

TC

PB

OC

PB

PB 
Hearing

Town 
Attorney

TC

TC 
Hearing

Becomes 
effective

•30 days 
after TC 
adoption

Current Process

Amendment 
starts with 
P&D or PB

Town Council (TC)

Planning & Development Committee (P&D)

Planning Board (PB)

Ordinance Committee (OC)

Town Attorney

Key



PB • Drafts amendment (can 
be OC), Schedules 
hearing

P&D

PB 
Hearing

• Notice posted per 
30-A MRS 4352 
para 9

TC

TC 
Hearing

• Required by 
Hampden 
Charter

Becomes 
Effective • 30 days after Date 

5 (if adopted)

Required: If initiated by PB (Ord. Committee)
Date 1: Initiated

Date 3

Date 5: TC Action

Date 6

Date 4: set hearing

This is the process that is required under state law, the Zoning 
Ordinance, the Charter, and the Town Council Rules.

Date 2: Review

Note: The OC is currently an integral part of the 
process but is not included anywhere in the written 
ordinance or rules. 



TC •TC request 
referred to 
PB

PB •Schedules 
hearing

P&D •Review & 
recommendation

PB 
Hearing

•Notice posted per 30-A MRS 
4352 para 9; Recommendation 
to TC within 45 days of Date 2

TC •Set hearing 
date

TC 
Hearing •TC Action

Becomes 
Effective

• 30 days after Date 
5 (if adopted)

Required: If Initiated by TC (P&D Committee)
Date 1

Date 2

Date 4

Date 5

Date 7

Note: The OC is currently an integral part of the 
process but is not included anywhere in the written 
ordinance or rules. 

This is the process that is required under state law, the Zoning 
Ordinance, the Charter, and the Town Council Rules.

Date 6

Date 3



OC
• Town Planner works with 

OC to draft amendment, 
updating P&D during 
process, Town Attorney 
review during this step.

PB
• Reviews and 

schedules 
hearing

PB 
Hearing

• Notice posted per 30-A 
MRS 4352 para 9

P&D • Reviews and makes 
recommendation to TC

TC • Reviews and takes 
action

Becomes 
Effective

• 30 days after Date 5 
(if adopted)

Recommended Process

Date 1*

Date 2

Date 3

Date 4

Date 5

Date 6

The intent is to make the entire process 
a more collaborative effort between 
the Town Planner, P&DC, OC, and PB.

Notice posted in town hall at least 13 days prior to 
hearing; published in newspaper at least 12 days 
and 7 days prior to hearing.

* Date 1 is actually a time 
period which could last 
anywhere from a few weeks 
to a few months, depending 
on the complexity of the 
amendment. For this exercise, 
Date 1 is the last meeting of 
the OC on the amendment. 

The TC, through the P&D, should be setting 
policy regarding what is in the best interest for 

the Town regarding zoning regulations. 
The PB, through the OC (with help from staff), 

should be drafting the language for the 
amendments to accomplish the goals set by TC.

To implement this, Sec. 213(b) of the Town Charter will need to be 
amended to exclude amendments to the Zoning Ordinance from the 
requirement for a public hearing. TC action would still be required, 
but the public hearing held by the Planning Board, which is required 
by statute, should suffice for public input. It is also recommended to 
amend Sec. 1.5 of the Zoning Ordinance to more accurately and 
clearly reflect the amendment process, whether initiated by the 
Town (TC, PB, or staff) or by a private entity or by petition of 10% 
of the registered voters. 

Also note the Zoning Ordinance sets forth specific procedure for 
amendments to zoning districts (map) that are initiated by a 
property owner; that process supersedes this.

Note: the draft 
amendment may be 
modified based on 
input at the hearing.



OC • Aug 24

PB • Sept 14

PB 
Hearing

• Oct 12

P&D • Oct 19

TC • Nov 7

Becomes 
Effective

• Dec 7; 
• Total 15 weeks

Recommended Process, sample schedule
Date 1

Date 2

Date 3

Date 4

Date 5

Date 6



TC
•Submitted at any TC mtg; proposed 
ordinance included in packet

•Set public hearing

P&D •Not written into Charter procedure, but is 
in TC Rules that P&D review proposed 
ordinance

TC 
Hearing

•Notice of hearing published and 
posted at least 7 days prior to 
hearing

• If substantive changes made, 
requires new public hearing

•TC action to follow hearing

Becomes 
Effective • 30 days after Date 3 (if 

adopted)

For Ordinance Amendments NOT Involving PB

This is the process that is required under the Charter and the 
Town Council Rules.Date 1

Date 2

Date 3

Date 4



To: Planning Board 
From: Karen M. Cullen, AICP, Town Planner 
Date: August 4, 2016 
RE: Overview of Town’s Work Plan / Status of Comprehensive Plan Committee 

As a prelude to the discussion on the status of the Comprehensive Plan Committee, Town Manager 
Jennings and I thought it would be useful for the Planning Board to see the attached “Town 
Manager Project Management.” This document highlights the projects already under consideration 
or planned to be addressed sometime within the next year or so; at five pages long you can see 
there is a lot to do. This listing has been sorted to put all the items which the Town Planner is either 
to be the lead on or should have a role in at the beginning of the list; at just over two pages (51 
projects) this is quite a long list.  

Projects shown with a yellow background are in progress, those with a pink background have yet 
to be started, and those with a green background have been completed. Of the 51 projects which 
I will have some role in, 4 have been completed.  

That said, and recognizing that there are no projects directly related to the Comprehensive Plan, 
my recommendation to the Ordinance Committee and to the Planning Board is that regulatory 
amendments (to the Subdivision Ordinance, Zoning Ordinance, and Shoreland Zoning Ordinance) 
should be reviewed in light of consistency with the Comprehensive Plan. They should be analyzed 
to determine if they further the goals of the community and help the town achieve the vision set 
forth in the Plan.  

Town of Hampden 

Office of the Town Planner 

Memorandum 

gh

planner
Text Box
3g, 3h



Last updated May 1, 2016
WORKING DRAFT

M
aj

or
 T

as
k 

(w
ith

 su
b-

ta
sk

s)

Town Manager                            
Project Management

Ti
m

in
g 

(S
ho

rt
 1

-2
; M

id
 3

-5
; L

on
g 

6+
 y

ea
rs

)

O
ne

 T
im

e 
(1

), 
Re

cu
rr

in
g 

(R
ec

) o
r O

ng
oi

ng
 (O

G
)?

Town M
an

ag
er /

 Treasu
rer

Town Atto
rney (

co
ntra

ct)

Acco
untin

g /
 Fi

nan
ce

 / H
R

Offic
e Clerk 

/ D
ep. R

egis
tra

r o
f V

oters

Tax
 Colle

cto
r /

 GA / D
MV

Town Clerk 
/ R

eg. 
of V

oters 
/ D

ep. C
olle

cto
r /

 Council 
Se

c.

Plan
ning &

 Eco
nomic D

eve
lopment

Eco
nomic D

eve
lopment (c

ontra
ct)

Asse
ssi

ng

GIS 
/ In

form
ati

on Tech
nology

Cable TV Operat
ors

Administ
ratio

n Assi
sta

nt

Public 
Works

 in
cl.

 So
lid

 W
ast

e, C
emetery

Utili
ty 

Billi
ng C

lerk

Police
Fir

e / A
mbulan

ce

Code Enforce
ment

Lib
rar

y

Recre
atio

n

Pool
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

#  Project Full 
Council

Infra Svcs
Adm 
Fin

Plan 
Dev

Council Sub-Committee

1 Accessory Apartments ordinance amendment x 1 o o x o

4 Amend Medical Marijuana Ordinance for conformity with 
Statute

x 1 o o x o

11 Business outreach database (w HBA) x OG x o

x 23 Fiberight/MRC (permitting) x 1 o x o o o o o

27 Flag Lots ordinance amendments x 1 o o x o

32 Gravel Extraction ordinance amendments x 1 o o x o

34 Hampden Business Park Project w/ Herb Sargent x Rec x o

39 Home Occupation ordinance amendments x 1 o o x o

x 53 Marina sign x 1 o x o o o

x 55 MS4 5 year permit - investigate need for Stormwater utility fee x o o 1 x o

62 Private Roads Subdivision ordinance amendments x 1 x o x o o

66 Recodification (General Code Project to Codify Ordinances) x x 1 o o o x o

98 Strengthen marketing of Triangle area and Hampden Business 
Park

x OG o x

14 Childrens Day x Rec o o TP o o o o x o

15 Community Resource Booklet (with Hampden Business 
Association)

1 TP x

18 Dangerous Bldg (758 North Main) x 1 o o o TP o x

38 Historical Preservation Commission - appoint and ensure viability 
to complete responsibilities in Ordinance x x OG x o TP

47 Legislative Advocacy Rec x TP o

x 51 Marina management including establishing protocols/form for 
moorings. Potential appoint of working group/Committee?

x x Rec o x TP x o o

54
Market study (incl. retail gap analysis) to determine what types 
of businesses would succeed here, then undertake targeted 
outreach

x 1 o TP

x 59 Pine Tree Landfill Post Closure (30 year monitoring) x OG x TP o o o o

61 Private Roads Subdivision applicants' guide 1 TP

x 65 Reactivate Environmental Trust x OG x o TP o

68 Recommend projects for funding through 5-year BACTS process 
(typically late summer/early fall).

x Rec o TP o o o

LEGEND

Complete x Project Manager
Underway o Project Support
Not Started - In the loop

Administration Land/Tech

Plant

Safety

Culture

planner
Highlight



Last updated May 1, 2016
WORKING DRAFT

M
aj

or
 T

as
k 

(w
ith

 su
b-

ta
sk

s)

Town Manager                            
Project Management

Ti
m

in
g 

(S
ho

rt
 1

-2
; M

id
 3

-5
; L

on
g 

6+
 y

ea
rs

)

O
ne

 T
im

e 
(1

), 
Re

cu
rr

in
g 

(R
ec

) o
r O

ng
oi

ng
 (O

G
)?

Town M
an

ag
er /

 Treasu
rer

Town Atto
rney (

co
ntra

ct)

Acco
untin

g /
 Fi

nan
ce

 / H
R

Offic
e Clerk 

/ D
ep. R

egis
tra

r o
f V

oters

Tax
 Colle

cto
r /

 GA / D
MV

Town Clerk 
/ R

eg. 
of V

oters 
/ D

ep. C
olle

cto
r /

 Council 
Se

c.

Plan
ning &

 Eco
nomic D

eve
lopment

Eco
nomic D

eve
lopment (c

ontra
ct)

Asse
ssi

ng

GIS 
/ In

form
ati

on Tech
nology

Cable TV Operat
ors

Administ
ratio

n Assi
sta

nt

Public 
Works

 in
cl.

 So
lid

 W
ast

e, C
emetery

Utili
ty 

Billi
ng C

lerk

Police
Fir

e / A
mbulan

ce

Code Enforce
ment

Lib
rar

y

Recre
atio

n

Pool
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

#  Project Full 
Council

Infra Svcs
Adm 
Fin

Plan 
Dev

Council Sub-Committee

LEGEND

Complete x Project Manager
Underway o Project Support
Not Started - In the loop

Administration Land/Tech

Plant

Safety

Culture

x 74 Resolve developers' escrow accounts x 1 x o TP o

77 Riverfront Master Plan x OG o TP o o o

89 Skehan Center/Rec Fields Planning x x 1 o TP o - x o

92 Stormwater - Sucker Brook watershed plan o x 1 o TP (x) o

93 Stormwater - plan for Shaw Brook (urban impaired stream) o x 1 o TP (x) o

x 94 Stormwater management, incl. program changes o x OG o TP (x) x o o o o

x 95 Stormwater Utility o o x Rec x TP o o o

97 Street Light requests (Street Light Policy) x Rec o TP o o x

x 104 TIF budgeting and accounting protocols (establish & implement) x OG x o o TP o

105 TIF strategic / budget planning x x OG x o TP o o o

106 Town Center Master Plan (incl. economic development, 
transportation planning  Rec/VFW fields)

o o x OG o TP o o o

x 107 Tracking Hampden's TIP financial obligations; ensure these are 
reflected in Hampden Capital Improvement Plan

x OG o TP o

x 117 Website refresh 1 x o TP o o o o o o o o o o

118
Western Avenue Sidewalk Grant – completion of 4 mile square. 
Working w W&C on design; hoping to go out to bid in spring 
2016 for constuction in summer.

x o 1 o TP x o

2 Adjust Fees Ordinance to provide for Applicant payment of all 
advertising and legal costs.

x 1 x o o o o

5 Ammo Park property line confirmation x 1 x o o o o o

x 9 Budget implementation 2015-2016 x OG x o o o o o o o o o o o o

x 13 Capital Improvement Plan, incl. funding Reserve Accounts to 
achieve goals

x x OG x o o o o o o o o o

21 Evaluation of effectiveness of new Planning/Development Dept. 
implemented in May 2015 x 1 x o o o o o o

28 Flood Maps update x 1 o o o x o

35 Harbor Ordinance amendments x 1 x o o o o

49 LWCF Compliance (Marina and Lura Hoit Pool) x Rec o x

67 Recommend fee schedule for inclusion in ordinance 
recodification x 1 x o

73 Release Deed for payment of $20k for lot sale in business park Rec x o o o o

x 78 Route 1A MDOT Project – Redoing from Mtn View Ave to 
Western Ave; in conjunction will be installing sidewalk to x 1 o x o

planner
Highlight



Last updated May 1, 2016
WORKING DRAFT

M
aj

or
 T

as
k 

(w
ith

 su
b-

ta
sk

s)

Town Manager                            
Project Management

Ti
m

in
g 

(S
ho

rt
 1

-2
; M

id
 3

-5
; L

on
g 

6+
 y

ea
rs

)

O
ne

 T
im

e 
(1

), 
Re

cu
rr

in
g 

(R
ec

) o
r O

ng
oi

ng
 (O

G
)?

Town M
an

ag
er /

 Treasu
rer

Town Atto
rney (

co
ntra

ct)

Acco
untin

g /
 Fi

nan
ce

 / H
R

Offic
e Clerk 

/ D
ep. R

egis
tra

r o
f V

oters

Tax
 Colle

cto
r /

 GA / D
MV

Town Clerk 
/ R

eg. 
of V

oters 
/ D

ep. C
olle

cto
r /

 Council 
Se

c.

Plan
ning &

 Eco
nomic D

eve
lopment

Eco
nomic D

eve
lopment (c

ontra
ct)

Asse
ssi

ng

GIS 
/ In

form
ati

on Tech
nology

Cable TV Operat
ors

Administ
ratio

n Assi
sta

nt

Public 
Works

 in
cl.

 So
lid

 W
ast

e, C
emetery

Utili
ty 

Billi
ng C

lerk

Police
Fir

e / A
mbulan

ce

Code Enforce
ment

Lib
rar

y

Recre
atio

n

Pool
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

#  Project Full 
Council

Infra Svcs
Adm 
Fin

Plan 
Dev

Council Sub-Committee

LEGEND

Complete x Project Manager
Underway o Project Support
Not Started - In the loop

Administration Land/Tech

Plant

Safety

Culture

91 Stormwater Audit – anticipated early summer 2016 x Rec o o o x o o x o o

x 113 Updates to Fees Ordinance x o Oct x o o o o o o o o o o o

3 Ambulance Abatement Policy x 1 o x

6 Bond Issue for Route 1A project (ant. Nov. 2016) x 1 o x

x 7 Bonds - management x OG x o

8 Bring Council rules into alignment w Town Charter (re absence 
policy) x 1

10 Bus - improve value (whether by reducing costs and/or boosting 
ridership through marketing and/or route changes)

x OG x

12 Cable Television Equipment Upgrade project implementation – 
awarded August 2015 x 1 x

16 Concentra Workers Comp protocols 1 o o x

17 Council adoption of new General Assistance ordinance x Rec o x o

x 19 Department of Labor Compliance x OG x o o o o o o o o o
Encumbrance policy for fiscal year-end carryovers x 1 x o

20

Enterprise funding for Rec and Pool - evaluate whether this is 
the right approach and modify if doing so will improve 
transparency of operations and/or reduce administrative 
burdens

x 1 o o x x

22 Execute lease-purchase agreement for trackless machine 1 o x o

24 File paperwork for partial reimbursement of costs for AV 
improvements to Council Chambers x 1 x o

25 Fill vacancies on Town Commissions, Committees, Boards. x OG o x

26 Fire Dept - increase number of call fire fighters x OG o x

x 29 Foreclosures x o Rec o x o o

30 Forest Management Plan (reporting, oversight) x Rec o o x o

31 Grant writing x Rec o

33 Grubs (VFW Field, Lura Hoit) x Rec o o x o

x 36 Health Insurance (Monitoring changes/HRA) x OG x x

37 Hire new Town Attorney x 1 x

40 Hunting on Town owned land - clarify protocols x Rec x o o o o

planner
Highlight



Last updated May 1, 2016
WORKING DRAFT

M
aj

or
 T

as
k 

(w
ith

 su
b-

ta
sk

s)

Town Manager                            
Project Management

Ti
m

in
g 

(S
ho

rt
 1

-2
; M

id
 3

-5
; L

on
g 

6+
 y

ea
rs

)

O
ne

 T
im

e 
(1

), 
Re

cu
rr

in
g 

(R
ec

) o
r O

ng
oi

ng
 (O

G
)?

Town M
an

ag
er /

 Treasu
rer

Town Atto
rney (

co
ntra

ct)

Acco
untin

g /
 Fi

nan
ce

 / H
R

Offic
e Clerk 

/ D
ep. R

egis
tra

r o
f V

oters

Tax
 Colle

cto
r /

 GA / D
MV

Town Clerk 
/ R

eg. 
of V

oters 
/ D

ep. C
olle

cto
r /

 Council 
Se

c.

Plan
ning &

 Eco
nomic D

eve
lopment

Eco
nomic D

eve
lopment (c

ontra
ct)

Asse
ssi

ng

GIS 
/ In

form
ati

on Tech
nology

Cable TV Operat
ors

Administ
ratio

n Assi
sta

nt

Public 
Works

 in
cl.

 So
lid

 W
ast

e, C
emetery

Utili
ty 

Billi
ng C

lerk

Police
Fir

e / A
mbulan

ce

Code Enforce
ment

Lib
rar

y

Recre
atio

n

Pool
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

#  Project Full 
Council

Infra Svcs
Adm 
Fin

Plan 
Dev

Council Sub-Committee

LEGEND

Complete x Project Manager
Underway o Project Support
Not Started - In the loop

Administration Land/Tech

Plant

Safety

Culture

x 41 Impact Fee Ordinance x 1

42 Implement addition of motor vehicle plate issuance to town 
office responsibilities x 1 o o x o

43 Inclement Weather Policy x 1 x o o

44 Internet / broadband - improve access for residents and 
businesses

x OG x o

45 LED lighting - Library x 1 o o o x

46 LED Streetlights x 1 x o o o o

48 Library - provide for credit / debit card payments x 1 o o x

50 Map showing changes in assessed values over time x 1 o x

52 Marina ramp improvements x 1 o x

56 Online registration and payment for Rec and Pool o x 1 o o o x o

57 Organize Candidate Forum for Council/ School Board candidates 
for airing prior to November Election x Rec x o

58 Outsourcing one or more DPW functions - evaluate and propose 
if feasible, equal or greater level of service and cost savings x OG o o o x

60 Pool punch card/gift card policy 1

63 Property & Casualty Insurance Renewal Rec x o o o

64 Public Safety Working Group x OG o o o o x o o

69 Recording of Council and RSU-22 Board meetings x 1 o o x

x 70 Recreation Affiliated Programs x Rec o o o x

71 Recreation staffing levels relative to programs offered - evaluate 
and adjust if/as needed

x 1 o o x

72 Regionalize one or more local services (if feasible, equal or 
greater level of service, and cost effective)

x OG x o

75 Retirement funding strategy for long-term unfunded liabilities x OG x o

76 Revamp Council Rules & Code of Ethics x 1 o x

x 79 RSU-22 Budget Process x Rec x o o o

80 Secure legal review of MRC joinder etc. Potential to work in 
coordination with other towns (Hermon etc)

x x x 1 x o

81 Service Charge Collections x Rec x o o

82 Sewer collections x Rec x o o o o



Last updated May 1, 2016
WORKING DRAFT

M
aj

or
 T

as
k 

(w
ith

 su
b-

ta
sk

s)

Town Manager                            
Project Management

Ti
m

in
g 

(S
ho

rt
 1

-2
; M

id
 3

-5
; L

on
g 

6+
 y

ea
rs

)

O
ne

 T
im

e 
(1

), 
Re

cu
rr

in
g 

(R
ec

) o
r O

ng
oi

ng
 (O

G
)?

Town M
an

ag
er /

 Treasu
rer

Town Atto
rney (

co
ntra

ct)

Acco
untin

g /
 Fi

nan
ce

 / H
R

Offic
e Clerk 

/ D
ep. R

egis
tra

r o
f V

oters

Tax
 Colle

cto
r /

 GA / D
MV

Town Clerk 
/ R

eg. 
of V

oters 
/ D

ep. C
olle

cto
r /

 Council 
Se

c.

Plan
ning &

 Eco
nomic D

eve
lopment

Eco
nomic D

eve
lopment (c

ontra
ct)

Asse
ssi

ng

GIS 
/ In

form
ati

on Tech
nology

Cable TV Operat
ors

Administ
ratio

n Assi
sta

nt

Public 
Works

 in
cl.

 So
lid

 W
ast

e, C
emetery

Utili
ty 

Billi
ng C

lerk

Police
Fir

e / A
mbulan

ce

Code Enforce
ment

Lib
rar

y

Recre
atio

n

Pool
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

#  Project Full 
Council

Infra Svcs
Adm 
Fin

Plan 
Dev

Council Sub-Committee

LEGEND

Complete x Project Manager
Underway o Project Support
Not Started - In the loop

Administration Land/Tech

Plant

Safety

Culture

83
Sewer Rate Evaluation/Increase needed to compensate for 
inadequate income from sewer fees to cover maintenance and 
debt service

o x OG o x

84 Sewer special rates - Fiberight x x 1 x o

85 Sewer: Adjust capital charge to fix the 30-60-90 consumption 
error for first quarter billing.

x o x

86 Sewer: Balance Sewer Fund before end of year. May require 
assistance from Trio.

x x o o

87 Sewer: Modify Trio to reflect updated fees for Second Qtr billing. x o x

88
Sewer: Reprogram Trio and coordinate with HWD to allow for 
import of usage data for billing. Reduce staff time associated 
with manual data entry, and reduce opportunity for error.

x x o

90 Staff meetings - Administration Department Rec x o o o o

96 Stream Cleanup (May) x 1 o o x o o

99 Swap Shop reconfiguration x 1 x

100 Tax Anticipation Note – 2015-16 x 1 x o o o

101 Tax Anticipation Note – 2016-17 x 1 x o o o

102 Tax Collections x OG o o x o o

103 Tax Relief Program (Concord model) x

108 Transfer Station - potential to outsource x x x 1 o o x

109 Transfer Station policies (i.e. home based businesses, other 
clarifications)

x o Rec o o o x o

110 Unassigned Fund Balance - restore to healthier condition x x OG x o

111 Update and Reaffirm ICMA-RA documents by April 30 2016 Rec o x

112 Update Personnel Policies (early arrivals, working from home, 
time out of office)

x 1 o x

114
Upgrade Town Building HVAC workstation and software; 
reconfigure ventilation for air circulator; secure training. If 
possible realize energy savings.

x Rec o x o o o o o o o o

115 Veterans' Honor Roll x 1 x o

116 VFW parks improvements (tennis, bball, parking) x o 1 o o x x

x 119 Workers Comp Insurance Rec o x

120 Yard Sale Permit policy x 1 o x



Last updated May 1, 2016
WORKING DRAFT

M
aj

or
 T

as
k 

(w
ith

 su
b-

ta
sk

s)

Town Manager                            
Project Management

Ti
m

in
g 

(S
ho

rt
 1

-2
; M

id
 3

-5
; L

on
g 

6+
 y

ea
rs

)

O
ne

 T
im

e 
(1

), 
Re

cu
rr

in
g 

(R
ec

) o
r O

ng
oi

ng
 (O

G
)?

Town M
an

ag
er /

 Treasu
rer

Town Atto
rney (

co
ntra

ct)

Acco
untin

g /
 Fi

nan
ce

 / H
R

Offic
e Clerk 

/ D
ep. R

egis
tra

r o
f V

oters

Tax
 Colle

cto
r /

 GA / D
MV

Town Clerk 
/ R

eg. 
of V

oters 
/ D

ep. C
olle

cto
r /

 Council 
Se

c.

Plan
ning &

 Eco
nomic D

eve
lopment

Eco
nomic D

eve
lopment (c

ontra
ct)

Asse
ssi

ng

GIS 
/ In

form
ati

on Tech
nology

Cable TV Operat
ors

Administ
ratio

n Assi
sta

nt

Public 
Works

 in
cl.

 So
lid

 W
ast

e, C
emetery

Utili
ty 

Billi
ng C

lerk

Police
Fir

e / A
mbulan

ce

Code Enforce
ment

Lib
rar

y

Recre
atio

n

Pool
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

#  Project Full 
Council

Infra Svcs
Adm 
Fin

Plan 
Dev

Council Sub-Committee

LEGEND

Complete x Project Manager
Underway o Project Support
Not Started - In the loop

Administration Land/Tech

Plant

Safety

Culture

LEGEND
Complete x Project Manager

Underway o Project Support

Not Underway - In the loop




